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PUBLIC 
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Paper or fiche 202–512–1800 
Assistance with public subscriptions 202–512–1806 

General online information 202–512–1530; 1–888–293–6498 
Single copies/back copies: 

Paper or fiche 202–512–1800 
Assistance with public single copies 1–866–512–1800 

(Toll-Free) 
FEDERAL AGENCIES 

Subscriptions: 
Paper or fiche 202–741–6005 
Assistance with Federal agency subscriptions 202–741–6005 

FEDERAL REGISTER WORKSHOP 

THE FEDERAL REGISTER: WHAT IT IS AND HOW TO USE IT 

FOR: Any person who uses the Federal Register and Code of 
Federal Regulations. 

WHO: Sponsored by the Office of the Federal Register. 

WHAT: Free public briefings (approximately 3 hours) to present: 

1. The regulatory process, with a focus on the Federal 
Register system and the public’s role in the develop-
ment of regulations. 

2. The relationship between the Federal Register and 
Code of Federal Regulations. 

3. The important elements of typical Federal Register doc-
uments. 

4. An introduction to the finding aids of the FR/CFR sys-
tem. 

WHY: To provide the public with access to information nec-
essary to research Federal agency regulations which di-
rectly affect them. There will be no discussion of spe-
cific agency regulations. 
llllllllllllllllll 

WHEN: Tuesday, October 22, 2013 
9 a.m.–12:30 p.m. 

WHERE: Office of the Federal Register 
Conference Room, Suite 700 
800 North Capitol Street, NW. 
Washington, DC 20002 

RESERVATIONS: (202) 741–6008 
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This section of the FEDERAL REGISTER
contains documents other than rules or
proposed rules that are applicable to the
public. Notices of hearings and investigations,
committee meetings, agency decisions and
rulings, delegations of authority, filing of
petitions and applications and agency
statements of organization and functions are
examples of documents appearing in this
section.

Notices Federal Register

61983 

Vol. 78, No. 196 

Wednesday, October 9, 2013 

1 16 U.S.C. 825, 825c and 825h. 
2 15 U.S.C. 717–717w. 
3 49 U.S.C. 20. 

4 The Commission defines burden as the total 
time, effort, or financial resources expended by 
persons to generate, maintain, retain, or disclose or 
provide information to or for a Federal agency. For 
further explanation of what is included in the 
information collection burden, reference 5 CFR 
1320.3. 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. IC14–1–000] 

Commission Information Collection 
Activities (FERC–555); Comment 
Request; Extension 

AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission, DOE. 
ACTION: Notice of information collection 
and request for comments. 

SUMMARY: In compliance with the 
requirements of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995, 44 U.S.C. 
3506(c)(2)(A), the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (Commission or 
FERC) is soliciting public comment on 
the currently approved information 
collection, FERC–555 (Records 
Retention Requirements). 
DATES: Comments on the collection of 
information are due December 9, 2013. 
ADDRESSES: You may submit comments 
(identified by Docket No. IC14–1–000) 
by either of the following methods: 

• eFiling at Commission’s Web site: 
http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
efiling.asp. 

• Mail/Hand Delivery/Courier: 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 
Secretary of the Commission, 888 First 
Street NE., Washington, DC 20426. 

Instructions: All submissions must be 
formatted and filed in accordance with 
submission guidelines at: http:// 
www.ferc.gov/help/submission- 
guide.asp. For user assistance contact 
FERC Online Support by email at 

ferconlinesupport@ferc.gov, or by phone 
at: (866) 208–3676 (toll-free), or (202) 
502–8659 for TTY. 

Docket: Users interested in receiving 
automatic notification of activity in this 
docket or in viewing/downloading 
comments and issuances in this docket 
may do so at http://www.ferc.gov/docs- 
filing/docs-filing.asp. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Ellen Brown may be reached by email 
at DataClearance@FERC.gov, telephone 
at (202) 502–8663, and fax at (202) 273– 
0873. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

Title: FERC–555, Records Retention 
Requirements. 

OMB Control No.: 1902–0098. 
Type of Request: Three-year extension 

of the FERC–555 information collection 
requirements with no changes to the 
current reporting requirements. 

Abstract: The Commission collects 
the information under the requirements 
of FERC–555 (Records Retention 
Requirements) to carry out its 
responsibilities in implementing the 
statutory provisions of Sections 301, 304 
and 309 of the Federal Power Act 
(FPA),1 Sections 8, 10 and 16 of the 
Natural Gas Act (NGA),2 and Section 20 
of the Interstate Commerce Act (ICA).3 

The regulations for preservation of 
records establish retention periods, 
necessary guidelines, and requirements 
for retention of applicable records. 
These requirements apply to the 
regulated public utilities, natural gas 
and oil pipeline companies subject to 
the Commission’s jurisdiction. 
Regulated entities use these records as 
the basis for required rate filings and 
reports to the Commission. 
Additionally, the Commission’s audit 
staff will use the records during 
compliance reviews. The Commission’s 
enforcement staff will also use the 
information during investigations. 
Finally, the Commission will use the 

records for special analyses when 
necessary. 

On January 8, 1999 the Commission 
issued AI99–2–000, an Accounting 
Issuance providing guidance on records 
storage media. More specifically, the 
Commission gave each jurisdictional 
company the flexibility to select its own 
storage media. The storage media 
selected must have a life expectancy 
equal to the applicable record period 
unless the quality of the data transferred 
from one media to another with no loss 
of data would exceed the record period. 

On January 27, 2000, the Commission 
issued a final rule amending its records 
retention regulations for public utilities 
and licensees as well as natural gas and 
oil pipeline companies. These changes 
included revising the general 
instructions, and shortening various 
records retention periods. The objective 
of the final rule was to reduce or 
eliminate burdensome and unnecessary 
regulatory requirements. 

The Commission is not making any 
additional changes to the record 
retention requirements specified under 
FERC–555. The Commission 
implements these filing requirements in 
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
under 18 CFR Parts 125, 225, and 356. 

Type of Respondents: Public utilities, 
natural gas companies, and oil 
companies. 

Estimate of Annual Burden: 4 In 2010 
Commission staff surveyed a small 
number of FERC–555 respondents in 
order to improve the burden estimates. 
We are using the same methodology as 
before. However, we are updating the 
figures due to current cost information 
and differences in the total number of 
respondents. 
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FERC–555: PRESERVATION OF RECORDS FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND LICENSES, NATURAL GAS AND OIL PIPELINE 
COMPANIES 

Number of respondents 

Number of 
responses 

per 
respondent 

Total number 
of responses 

Average 
burden hours 
per response 

Estimated total 
annual burden 

(A) (B) (A)×(B)=(C) (D) (C)×(D) 

509 ................................................................................................................... 1 509 5,218 2,655,962 

The total estimated annual cost 
burden to respondents is $154,949,271, 
which includes $78,242,971 for non- 
labor record storage costs and 
$76,706,300 for employee costs. The 
average cost per respondent is $304,419, 
which includes $153,719 for non-labor 
record storage costs and $150,700 for 
employee costs. All of these cost figures 
are based on staff analysis of the data we 
received in 2010. 

Comments: Comments are invited on: 
(1) Whether the collection of 
information is necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
Commission, including whether the 
information will have practical utility; 
(2) the accuracy of the agency’s estimate 
of the burden and cost of the collection 
of information, including the validity of 
the methodology and assumptions used; 
(3) ways to enhance the quality, utility 
and clarity of the information collection; 
and (4) ways to minimize the burden of 
the collection of information on those 
who are to respond, including the use 
of automated collection techniques or 
other forms of information technology. 

Dated: October 2, 2013. 
Kimberly D. Bose, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2013–24406 Filed 10–8–13; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Project No. 13124–005] 

Copper Valley Electric Association, 
Inc.; Notice of Application To Amend 
License and Accepted for Filing, 
Soliciting Comments, Motions To 
Intervene, and Protests 

Take notice that the following 
hydroelectric application has been filed 
with the Commission and is available 
for public inspection: 

a. Type of Application: Amendment 
to License. 

b. Project No: 13124–005. 
c. Date Filed: September 27, 2013. 

d. Applicant: Copper Valley Electric 
Association, Inc. 

e. Name of Project: Allison Creek 
Hydroelectric Project. 

f. Location: On Allison Creek in 
Valdez, Alaska. This project does not 
occupy any Federal Lands. 

g. Filed Pursuant to: Federal Power 
Act, 16 U.S.C. 791(a)–825(r). 

h. Applicant Contact: Robert A. 
Wilkinson, CEO, Copper Valley Electric 
Association, Inc., P.O. Box 45, Mile 187 
Glenn Highway, Glennallen, AK 99588, 
(907) 822–3211 

i. FERC Contact: Steven Sachs at (202) 
502–8666; or Steven.Sachs@ferc.gov. 

j. Deadline for filing comments, 
motions to intervene, and protests, is 15 
days from the issuance date of this 
notice by the Commission. The 
Commission strongly encourages 
electronic filing. Please file any motion 
to intervene, protest, comments, and/or 
recommendations using the 
Commission’s eFiling system at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/efiling.asp. 
Commenters can submit brief comments 
up to 6,000 characters, without prior 
registration, using the eComment system 
at http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
ecomment.asp. You must include your 
name and contact information at the end 
of your comments. For assistance, 
please contact FERC Online Support at 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, (866) 
208–3676 (toll free), or (202) 502–8659 
(TTY). In lieu of electronic filing, please 
send a paper copy to: Secretary, Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 
First Street NE., Washington, DC 20426. 
The first page of any filing should 
include docket number P–13124–005. 

k. Description of Request: As licensed, 
the unconstructed project includes an 
approximately 7,000-foot-long mostly 
above ground and partially buried 
penstock and an approximately 4,000- 
foot-long temporary construction access 
road. In its application, the licensee 
proposes to instead bury the penstock 
for its entire length, construct a 2,700- 
foot-long temporary construction access 
road, and drill and blast a 700-foot-long, 
16-foot-diameter access tunnel through 
which a segment of the penstock would 
be routed. 

l. Locations of the Application: This 
filing may be viewed on the 
Commission’s Web site at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/elibrary.asp. 
Enter the docket number P–13124 in the 
docket number field to access the 
document. You may also register online 
at http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
esubscription.asp to be notified via 
email of new filings and issuances 
related to this or other pending projects. 
For assistance, call 1–866–208–3676 or 
email FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, for 
TTY, call (202) 502–8659. A copy is also 
available for inspection and 
reproduction at the address in item (h) 
above and at the Commission’s Public 
Reference Room, located at 888 First 
Street NE., Room 2A, Washington, DC 
20426, or by calling (202) 502–8371. 

m. Individuals desiring to be included 
on the Commission’s mailing list should 
so indicate by writing to the Secretary 
of the Commission. 

n. Comments, Protests, or Motions to 
Intervene: Anyone may submit 
comments, a protest, or a motion to 
intervene in accordance with the 
requirements of Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 18 CFR 385.210, .211, .214. 
In determining the appropriate action to 
take, the Commission will consider all 
protests or other comments filed, but 
only those who file a motion to 
intervene in accordance with the 
Commission’s Rules may become a 
party to the proceeding. Any comments, 
protests, or motions to intervene must 
be received on or before the specified 
comment date for the particular 
application. 

o. Filing and Service of Responsive 
Documents: Any filing must (1) Bear in 
all capital letters the title 
‘‘COMMENTS’’, ‘‘PROTEST’’, or 
‘‘MOTION TO INTERVENE’’ as 
applicable; (2) set forth in the heading 
the name of the applicant and the 
project number of the application to 
which the filing responds; (3) furnish 
the name, address, and telephone 
number of the person protesting or 
intervening; and (4) otherwise comply 
with the requirements of 18 CFR 
385.2001 through 385.2005. All 
comments, motions to intervene, or 
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1 18 CFR 385.2001–385.2005 (2013). 

protests must set forth their evidentiary 
basis and otherwise comply with the 
requirements of 18 CFR 4.34(b). All 
comments, motions to intervene, or 
protests should relate to project works 
which are the subject of the license 
amendment. Agencies may obtain 
copies of the application directly from 
the applicant. A copy of any protest or 
motion to intervene must be served 
upon each representative of the 
applicant specified in the particular 
application. If an intervener files 
comments or documents with the 
Commission relating to the merits of an 
issue that may affect the responsibilities 
of a particular resource agency, they 
must also serve a copy of the document 
on that resource agency. A copy of all 
other filings in reference to this 
application must be accompanied by 
proof of service on all persons listed in 
the service list prepared by the 
Commission in this proceeding, in 
accordance with 18 CFR 4.34(b) and 
385.2010. 

Dated: October 2, 2013. 
Kimberly D. Bose, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2013–24410 Filed 10–8–13; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. CD13–6–000] 

City of Astoria, Oregon; Notice of 
Preliminary Determination of a 
Qualifying Conduit Hydropower 
Facility and Soliciting Comments and 
Motions To Intervene 

On September 24, 2013, City of 
Astoria, Oregon (Astoria) filed a notice 
of intent to construct a qualifying 
conduit hydropower facility, pursuant 
to section 30 of the Federal Power Act, 
as amended by section 4 of the 
Hydropower Regulatory Efficiency Act 
of 2013 (HREA). The 60 kW Bear Creek 
Watershed Hydroelectric Project would 
utilize the city of Astoria’s water 
distribution system, and it would be 
located in Clatsop County, Oregon. 

Applicant Contact: Paul Benoit, City 
of Astoria, Oregon, 1095 Duane Street, 
Astoria, OR 97103, Phone No. (503) 
325–5824. 

FERC Contact: Robert Bell, Phone No. 
(202) 502–6062, email: robert.bell@
ferc.gov. 

Qualifying Conduit Hydropower 
Facility Description: The proposed 
project would consist of the following 
two developments: 

Site one would consist of: (1) A new 
intake pipeline receiving water from an 
existing 26-inch conduit pipeline; (2) a 
new powerhouse containing one new 
30-kilowatt generating unit; (3) a new, 
small pipeline discharging water into an 
existing 21-inch pipeline; and (4) 
appurtenant facilities. 

Site two would consist of: (1) A new 
intake pipeline receiving water from an 
existing 21-inch conduit pipeline; (2) an 
existing powerhouse containing one 
new 30-kilowatt generating unit; (3) a 
new, small pipeline discharging water 
into an existing 21-inch pipeline; and 
(4) appurtenant facilities. 

The proposed project would have an 
estimated annual generating capacity of 
175.25 megawatt-hours. 

A qualifying conduit hydropower 
facility is one that is determined or 
deemed to meet all of the criteria shown 
in the table below. 

TABLE 1—CRITERIA FOR QUALIFYING CONDUIT HYDROPOWER FACILITY 

Statutory provision Description Satisfies 
(Y/N) 

FPA 30(a)(3)(A), as amended by HREA .... The conduit the facility uses is a tunnel, canal, pipeline, aqueduct, flume, ditch, or 
similar manmade water conveyance that is operated for the distribution of water 
for agricultural, municipal, or industrial consumption and not primarily for the gen-
eration of electricity.

Y 

FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(i), as amended by HREA The facility is constructed, operated, or maintained for the generation of electric 
power and uses for such generation only the hydroelectric potential of a non-fed-
erally owned conduit.

Y 

FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(ii), as amended by HREA The facility has an installed capacity that does not exceed 5 megawatts .................... Y 
FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(iii), as amended by HREA On or before August 9, 2013, the facility is not licensed, or exempted from the li-

censing requirements of Part I of the FPA.
Y 

Preliminary Determination: Based 
upon the above criteria, Commission 
staff preliminarily determines that the 
proposal satisfies the requirements for a 
qualifying conduit hydropower facility 
not required to be licensed or exempted 
from licensing. 

Comments and Motions To Intervene: 
Deadline for filing comments contesting 
whether the facility meets the qualifying 
criteria is 45 days from the issuance 
date of this notice. 

Deadline for filing motions to 
intervene is 30 days from the issuance 
date of this notice. 

Anyone may submit comments or a 
motion to intervene in accordance with 
the requirements of Rules of Practice 
and Procedure, 18 CFR 385.210 and 
385.214. Any motions to intervene must 

be received on or before the specified 
deadline date for the particular 
proceeding. 

Filing and Service of Responsive 
Documents: All filings must (1) bear in 
all capital letters the ‘‘COMMENTS 
CONTESTING QUALIFICATION FOR A 
CONDUIT HYDROPOWER FACILITY’’ 
or ‘‘MOTION TO INTERVENE,’’ as 
applicable; (2) state in the heading the 
name of the applicant and the project 
number of the application to which the 
filing responds; (3) state the name, 
address, and telephone number of the 
person filing; and (4) otherwise comply 
with the requirements of sections 
385.2001 through 385.2005 of the 
Commission’s regulations.1 All 

comments contesting Commission staff’s 
preliminary determination that the 
facility meets the qualifying criteria 
must set forth their evidentiary basis. 

The Commission strongly encourages 
electronic filing. Please file motions to 
intervene and comments using the 
Commission’s eFiling system at http://
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/efiling.asp. 
Commenters can submit brief comments 
up to 6,000 characters, without prior 
registration, using the eComment system 
at http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/
ecomment.asp. You must include your 
name and contact information at the end 
of your comments. For assistance, 
please contact FERC Online Support at 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, (866) 
208–3676 (toll free), or (202) 502–8659 
(TTY). In lieu of electronic filing, please 
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1 18 CFR 385.2001–385.2005 (2013). 

send a paper copy to: Secretary, Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 
First Street NE., Washington, DC 20426. 
A copy of all other filings in reference 
to this application must be accompanied 
by proof of service on all persons listed 
in the service list prepared by the 
Commission in this proceeding, in 
accordance with 18 CFR 4.34(b) and 
385.2010. 

Locations of Notice of Intent: Copies 
of the notice of intent can be obtained 
directly from the applicant or such 
copies can be viewed and reproduced at 
the Commission in its Public Reference 
Room, Room 2A, 888 First Street NE., 
Washington, DC 20426. The filing may 
also be viewed on the Web at http://
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/elibrary.asp 
using the ‘‘eLibrary’’ link. Enter the 
docket number (e.g., CD13–6–000) in 
the docket number field to access the 
document. For assistance, call toll-free 
1–866–208–3676 or email 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov. For TTY, 
call (202) 502–8659. 

Dated: October 2, 2013. 
Kimberly D. Bose, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2013–24408 Filed 10–8–13; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. CD13–7–000] 

City of Santa Barbara, California; 
Notice of Preliminary Determination of 
a Qualifying Conduit Hydropower 
Facility and Soliciting Comments and 
Motions To Intervene 

On September 24, 2013, the City of 
Santa Barbara, California, filed a notice 
of intent to construct a qualifying 
conduit hydropower facility, pursuant 
to section 30 of the Federal Power Act, 
as amended by section 4 of the 
Hydropower Regulatory Efficiency Act 
of 2013 (HREA). The Gibraltar Conduit 
Hydroelectric Project would be located 
within the City of Santa Barbara’s 
existing water supply system, at the site 

of a previously decommissioned 
hydroelectric plant. The plant is located 
at the outlet of the Gibraltar Conduit at 
the north end of the Lauro Reservoir in 
Santa Barbara County, California. 

Applicant Contact: Rebecca Bjork, 
Water Resources Manager, 630 Garden 
Street, PO Box 1990, Santa Barbara, CA 
93102, Phone No. (805) 897–1914. 

FERC Contact: Christopher Chaney, 
Phone No. (202) 502–6778, email: 
christopher.chaney@ferc.gov. 

Qualifying Conduit Hydropower 
Facility Description: The proposed 
project would consist of: (1) An existing 
16-inch diameter intake pipeline 
receiving water flows from an existing 
21-inch diameter pipeline; (2) an 
existing powerhouse, containing one 
820-kilowatt generating unit; (3) an 
exisiting 36-inch diameter discharge 
pipeline; and (4) appurtenant facilities. 
The proposed project would have an 
estimated annual generating capacity of 
1,874 megawatt-hours. 

A qualifying conduit hydropower 
facility is one that is determined or 
deemed to meet all of the criteria shown 
in the table below. 

TABLE 1—CRITERIA FOR QUALIFYING CONDUIT HYDROPOWER FACILITY 

Statutory provision Description Satisfies 
(Y/N) 

FPA 30(a)(3)(A), as amended by HREA .... The conduit the facility uses is a tunnel, canal, pipeline, aqueduct, flume, ditch, or 
similar manmade water conveyance that is operated for the distribution of water 
for agricultural, municipal, or industrial consumption and not primarily for the gen-
eration of electricity 

Y 

FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(i), as amended by HREA The facility is constructed, operated, or maintained for the generation of electric 
power and uses for such generation only the hydroelectric potential of a non-fed-
erally owned conduit 

Y 

FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(ii), as amended by HREA The facility has an installed capacity that does not exceed 5 megawatts Y 
FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(iii), as amended by HREA On or before August 9, 2013, the facility is not licensed, or exempted from the li-

censing requirements of Part I of the FPA 
Y 

Preliminary Determination: Based 
upon the above criteria, Commission 
staff preliminarily determines that the 
proposal satisfies the requirements for a 
qualifying conduit hydropower facility 
not required to be licensed or exempted 
from licensing. 

Comments and Motions To Intervene: 
Deadline for filing comments contesting 
whether the facility meets the qualifying 
criteria is 45 days from the issuance 
date of this notice. 

Deadline for filing motions to 
intervene is 30 days from the issuance 
date of this notice. 

Anyone may submit comments or a 
motion to intervene in accordance with 
the requirements of Rules of Practice 
and Procedure, 18 CFR 385.210 and 
385.214. Any motions to intervene must 
be received on or before the specified 

deadline date for the particular 
proceeding. 

Filing and Service of Responsive 
Documents: All filings must (1) Bear in 
all capital letters the ‘‘COMMENTS 
CONTESTING QUALIFICATION FOR A 
CONDUIT HYDROPOWER FACILITY’’ 
or ‘‘MOTION TO INTERVENE,’’ as 
applicable; (2) state in the heading the 
name of the applicant and the project 
number of the application to which the 
filing responds; (3) state the name, 
address, and telephone number of the 
person filing; and (4) otherwise comply 
with the requirements of sections 
385.2001 through 385.2005 of the 
Commission’s regulations.1 All 
comments contesting Commission staff’s 
preliminary determination that the 

facility meets the qualifying criteria 
must set forth their evidentiary basis. 

The Commission strongly encourages 
electronic filing. Please file motions to 
intervene and comments using the 
Commission’s eFiling system at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/efiling.asp. 
Commenters can submit brief comments 
up to 6,000 characters, without prior 
registration, using the eComment system 
at http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/
ecomment.asp. You must include your 
name and contact information at the end 
of your comments. For assistance, 
please contact FERC Online Support at 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, (866) 
208–3676 (toll free), or (202) 502–8659 
(TTY). In lieu of electronic filing, please 
send a paper copy to: Secretary, Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 
First Street NE., Washington, DC 20426. 
A copy of all other filings in reference 
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1 18 CFR 385.2001–385.2005 (2013). 

to this application must be accompanied 
by proof of service on all persons listed 
in the service list prepared by the 
Commission in this proceeding, in 
accordance with 18 CFR 4.34(b) and 
385.2010. 

Locations of Notice of Intent: Copies 
of the notice of intent can be obtained 
directly from the applicant or such 
copies can be viewed and reproduced at 
the Commission in its Public Reference 
Room, Room 2A, 888 First Street NE., 
Washington, DC 20426. The filing may 
also be viewed on the Web at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/elibrary.asp 
using the ‘‘eLibrary’’ link. Enter the 
docket number (e.g., CD13–7) in the 
docket number field to access the 
document. For assistance, call toll-free 
1–866–208–3676 or email 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov. For TTY, 
call (202) 502–8659. 

Dated: October 2, 2013. 
Kimberly D. Bose, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2013–24409 Filed 10–8–13; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. CD13–5–000] 

Corbett Water District; Notice of 
Preliminary Determination of a 
Qualifying Conduit Hydropower 
Facility and Soliciting Comments and 
Motions To Intervene 

On September 23, 2013, Corbett Water 
District filed a notice of intent to 
construct a qualifying conduit 
hydropower facility, pursuant to section 
30 of the Federal Power Act, as 
amended by section 4 of the 
Hydropower Regulatory Efficiency Act 
of 2013 (HREA). The Corbett 

Hydroelectric Project would be located 
at the existing Corbett Water District 
water treatment facility in Corbett, 
Multnomah County, Oregon. 

Applicant Contact: James Jans, 
Corbett Water District, P.O. Box 6, 
Corbett, OR 97019, Phone No. (503) 
695–2284. 

FERC Contact: Christopher Chaney, 
Phone No. (202) 502–6778, email: 
christopher.chaney@ferc.gov. 

Qualifying Conduit Hydropower 
Facility Description: The proposed 
project would consist of: (1) A new 
eight-inch diameter intake pipeline 
receiving water flows from an existing 
8-inch diameter filter pond diversion 
pipeline; (2) a new fiberglass shelter 
containing one 10-kilowatt generating 
unit; and (3) appurtenant facilities. The 
proposed project would have an 
estimated annual generating capacity of 
72 megawatt-hours. 

A qualifying conduit hydropower 
facility is one that is determined or 
deemed to meet all of the criteria shown 
in the table below. 

TABLE 1—CRITERIA FOR QUALIFYING CONDUIT HYDROPOWER FACILITY 

Statutory provision Description Satisfies 
(Y/N) 

FPA 30(a)(3)(A), as amended by HREA .... The conduit the facility uses is a tunnel, canal, pipeline, aqueduct, flume, ditch, or 
similar manmade water conveyance that is operated for the distribution of water 
for agricultural, municipal, or industrial consumption and not primarily for the gen-
eration of electricity.

Y 

FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(i), as amended by HREA The facility is constructed, operated, or maintained for the generation of electric 
power, and uses for such generation only the hydroelectric potential of a non-fed-
erally owned conduit.

Y 

FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(ii), as amended by HREA The facility has an installed capacity that does not exceed 5 megawatts .................... Y 
FPA 30(a)(3)(C)(iii), as amended by HREA On or before August 9, 2013, the facility is not licensed, or exempted from the li-

censing requirements of Part I of the FPA.
Y 

Preliminary Determination: Based 
upon the above criteria, Commission 
staff preliminarily determines that the 
proposal satisfies the requirements for a 
qualifying conduit hydropower facility 
not required to be licensed or exempted 
from licensing. 

Comments and Motions To Intervene: 
Deadline for filing comments contesting 
whether the facility meets the qualifying 
criteria is 45 days from the issuance 
date of this notice. 

Deadline for filing motions to 
intervene is 30 days from the issuance 
date of this notice. 

Anyone may submit comments or a 
motion to intervene in accordance with 
the requirements of Rules of Practice 
and Procedure, 18 CFR 385.210 and 
385.214. Any motions to intervene must 
be received on or before the specified 
deadline date for the particular 
proceeding. 

Filing and Service of Responsive 
Documents: All filings must (1) bear in 

all capital letters the ‘‘COMMENTS 
CONTESTING QUALIFICATION FOR A 
CONDUIT HYDROPOWER FACILITY’’ 
or ‘‘MOTION TO INTERVENE,’’ as 
applicable; (2) state in the heading the 
name of the applicant and the project 
number of the application to which the 
filing responds; (3) state the name, 
address, and telephone number of the 
person filing; and (4) otherwise comply 
with the requirements of sections 
385.2001 through 385.2005 of the 
Commission’s regulations.1 All 
comments contesting Commission staff’s 
preliminary determination that the 
facility meets the qualifying criteria 
must set forth their evidentiary basis. 

The Commission strongly encourages 
electronic filing. Please file motions to 
intervene and comments using the 
Commission’s eFiling system at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/efiling.asp. 
Commenters can submit brief comments 

up to 6,000 characters, without prior 
registration, using the eComment system 
at http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/ 
ecomment.asp. You must include your 
name and contact information at the end 
of your comments. For assistance, 
please contact FERC Online Support at 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov, (866) 
208–3676 (toll free), or (202) 502–8659 
(TTY). In lieu of electronic filing, please 
send a paper copy to: Secretary, Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 
First Street NE., Washington, DC 20426. 
A copy of all other filings in reference 
to this application must be accompanied 
by proof of service on all persons listed 
in the service list prepared by the 
Commission in this proceeding, in 
accordance with 18 CFR 4.34(b) and 
385.2010. 

Locations of Notice of Intent: Copies 
of the notice of intent can be obtained 
directly from the applicant or such 
copies can be viewed and reproduced at 
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the Commission in its Public Reference 
Room, Room 2A, 888 First Street NE., 
Washington, DC 20426. The filing may 
also be viewed on the Web at http:// 
www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/elibrary.asp 
using the ‘‘eLibrary’’ link. Enter the 
docket number (e.g., CD13–5) in the 
docket number field to access the 
document. For assistance, call toll-free 
1–866–208–3676 or email 
FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov. For TTY, 
call (202) 502–8659. 

Dated: October 2, 2013. 
Kimberly D. Bose, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2013–24407 Filed 10–8–13; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM 

Change in Bank Control Notices; 
Acquisitions of Shares of a Bank or 
Bank Holding Company 

The notificants listed below have 
applied under the Change in Bank 
Control Act (12 U.S.C. 1817(j)) and 

§ 225.41 of the Board’s Regulation Y (12 
CFR 225.41) to acquire shares of a bank 
or bank holding company. The factors 
that are considered in acting on the 
notices are set forth in paragraph 7 of 
the Act (12 U.S.C. 1817(j)(7)). 

The notices are available for 
immediate inspection at the Federal 
Reserve Bank indicated. The notices 
also will be available for inspection at 
the offices of the Board of Governors. 
Interested persons may express their 
views in writing to the Reserve Bank 
indicated for that notice or to the offices 
of the Board of Governors. Comments 
must be received not later than October 
24, 2013. 

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas (E. 
Ann Worthy, Vice President) 2200 
North Pearl Street, Dallas, Texas 75201– 
2272: 

1. William E. Dorroh, Shreveport, 
Louisiana, individually and as trustee 
for the Stephanie D. O’Dowd Family 
Trust; Catherine B. Dorroh, Houston, 
Texas; Walter E. Dorroh, Jr., Mary 
Elizabeth Dorroh, both of Jena, 
Louisiana; Tjaden O’Dowd Cox, Mobile, 
Alabama; John Michael O’Dowd, Jr., 

Tuscaloosa, Alabama; and John Michael 
O’Dowd, Sr., Mobile, Alabama, 
individually and as trustee for the 
George W. O’Dowd Trust and the 
Stephanie D. O’Dowd Family Trust, to 
acquire voting shares of Mansfield 
Bancshares, Inc., and thereby indirectly 
acquire voting shares of Community 
Bank of Louisiana, both in Mansfield, 
Louisiana. 

B. Federal Reserve Bank of San 
Francisco (Gerald C. Tsai, Director, 
Applications and Enforcement) 101 
Market Street, San Francisco, California 
94105–1579: 

1. Alex Meruelo, Newport, California; 
to acquire voting shares of NCAL 
Bancorp, and thereby indirectly acquire 
voting shares of National Bank of 
California, both in Los Angeles, 
California. 

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System, October 4, 2013. 
Robert deV. Frierson, 
Secretary of the Board. 
[FR Doc. 2013–24405 Filed 10–8–13; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P 

VerDate Mar<15>2010 12:27 Oct 08, 2013 Jkt 232001 PO 00000 Frm 00006 Fmt 4703 Sfmt 9990 E:\FR\FM\09OCN1.SGM 09OCN1eh
ie

rs
 o

n 
D

S
K

2V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 N

O
T

IC
E

S

http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/elibrary.asp
http://www.ferc.gov/docs-filing/elibrary.asp
mailto:FERCOnlineSupport@ferc.gov


i 

Reader Aids Federal Register 

Vol. 78, No. 196 

Wednesday, October 9, 2013 

CUSTOMER SERVICE AND INFORMATION 

Federal Register/Code of Federal Regulations 
General Information, indexes and other finding 

aids 
202–741–6000 

Laws 741–6000 

Presidential Documents 
Executive orders and proclamations 741–6000 
The United States Government Manual 741–6000 

Other Services 
Electronic and on-line services (voice) 741–6020 
Privacy Act Compilation 741–6064 
Public Laws Update Service (numbers, dates, etc.) 741–6043 
TTY for the deaf-and-hard-of-hearing 741–6086 

ELECTRONIC RESEARCH 

World Wide Web 

Full text of the daily Federal Register, CFR and other publications 
is located at: www.fdsys.gov. 

Federal Register information and research tools, including Public 
Inspection List, indexes, and links to GPO Access are located at: 
www.ofr.gov. 

E-mail 

FEDREGTOC-L (Federal Register Table of Contents LISTSERV) is 
an open e-mail service that provides subscribers with a digital 
form of the Federal Register Table of Contents. The digital form 
of the Federal Register Table of Contents includes HTML and 
PDF links to the full text of each document. 

To join or leave, go to http://listserv.access.gpo.gov and select 
Online mailing list archives, FEDREGTOC-L, Join or leave the list 
(or change settings); then follow the instructions. 

PENS (Public Law Electronic Notification Service) is an e-mail 
service that notifies subscribers of recently enacted laws. 

To subscribe, go to http://listserv.gsa.gov/archives/publaws-l.html 
and select Join or leave the list (or change settings); then follow 
the instructions. 

FEDREGTOC-L and PENS are mailing lists only. We cannot 
respond to specific inquiries. 

Reference questions. Send questions and comments about the 
Federal Register system to: fedreg.info@nara.gov 

The Federal Register staff cannot interpret specific documents or 
regulations. 

Reminders. Effective January 1, 2009, the Reminders, including 
Rules Going Into Effect and Comments Due Next Week, no longer 
appear in the Reader Aids section of the Federal Register. This 
information can be found online at http://www.regulations.gov. 

CFR Checklist. Effective January 1, 2009, the CFR Checklist no 
longer appears in the Federal Register. This information can be 
found online at http://bookstore.gpo.gov/. 

FEDERAL REGISTER PAGES AND DATE, OCTOBER 

60177–60652......................... 1 
60653–61152......................... 2 
61153–61802......................... 3 
61803–61936......................... 4 
61937–61948......................... 7 
61949–61982......................... 8 
61983–61988......................... 9 

CFR PARTS AFFECTED DURING OCTOBER 

At the end of each month the Office of the Federal Register 
publishes separately a List of CFR Sections Affected (LSA), which 
lists parts and sections affected by documents published since 
the revision date of each title. 

1 CFR 

Proposed Rules: 
51.....................................60784 

3 CFR 

Proclamations: 
9024.................................60177 
9025.................................60179 
9026.................................61151 
9027.................................61803 
9028.................................61805 
9029.................................61807 
9030.................................61809 
9031.................................61811 
9032.................................61813 
9033.................................61815 
Executive Orders 
13652...............................61817 

5 CFR 

532.......................60181, 60182 
890...................................60653 
2641.................................61153 

7 CFR 

205...................................61154 

12 CFR 

1002.................................60382 
1024.................................60382 
1026.................................60382 

13 CFR 

121...................................61114 
124...................................61114 
125...................................61114 
126...................................61114 
127...................................61114 

14 CFR 

39 ...........60182, 60185, 60186, 
60188, 60656, 60658, 60660, 
60667, 60670, 60673, 60676, 
60679, 60681, 61161, 61164, 
61168, 61171, 61173, 61177 

71.........................60683, 61179 
Proposed Rules: 
39 ...........60798, 60800, 60804, 

60807, 61220 
71 ............60235, 60236, 60237 
73.....................................60238 

15 CFR 

730...................................61744 
732...................................61744 
734.......................61744, 61874 
736...................................61744 
738.......................61744, 61874 
740.......................61744, 61874 
742.......................61744, 61874 
743...................................61744 
744...................................61744 

746...................................61744 
748.......................61744, 61874 
750.......................61744, 61874 
756...................................61744 
758...................................61744 
762...................................61744 
764...................................61744 
770...................................61744 
772.......................61744, 61874 
774.......................61744, 61874 

17 CFR 

232...................................60684 
Proposed Rules: 
229...................................60560 
230...................................61222 
239...................................61222 
249...................................60560 

19 CFR 

10.....................................60191 
24.....................................60191 
162...................................60191 
163...................................60191 
178...................................60191 
Proposed Rules: 
351...................................60240 

20 CFR 

718...................................60686 
725...................................60686 

22 CFR 

120...................................61750 
121...................................61750 
123...................................61750 
126...................................61750 

24 CFR 

3282.................................60193 

27 CFR 

9 ..............60686, 60690, 60693 

29 CFR 

552...................................60454 

30 CFR 

250...................................60208 

31 CFR 

Ch. 11 ..............................60695 

33 CFR 

117...................................61180 
165 .........60216, 60218, 60220, 

60222, 60698, 61183, 61185, 
61937 

Proposed Rules: 
165...................................61223 

37 CFR 

Ch. I .................................61185 

VerDate Mar 15 2010 16:54 Oct 08, 2013 Jkt 232001 PO 00000 Frm 00001 Fmt 4712 Sfmt 4712 E:\FR\FM\09OCCU.LOC 09OCCUem
cd

on
al

d 
on

 D
S

K
67

Q
T

V
N

1P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

4

http://listserv.gsa.gov/archives/publaws-l.html
http://listserv.access.gpo.gov
http://www.regulations.gov
http://bookstore.gpo.gov
mailto:fedreg.info@nara.gov
http://www.fdsys.gov
http://www.ofr.gov


ii Federal Register / Vol. 78, No. 196 / Wednesday, October 9, 2013 / Reader Aids 

40 CFR 
49.....................................60700 
52 ............60225, 60704, 61188 
81.....................................60704 
180 .........60707, 60709, 60715, 

60720 
300...................................60721 
Proposed Rules: 
300...................................60809 

42 CFR 
412.......................61191, 61197 
413...................................61202 
424...................................61202 
482...................................61197 
485...................................61197 

489...................................61197 
Proposed Rules: 
121...................................60810 

44 CFR 

Proposed Rules: 
206...................................61227 

47 CFR 

87.....................................61203 
Proposed Rules: 
64.....................................61250 
73.....................................61251 

49 CFR 

107.......................60726, 60745 

109...................................60755 
130...................................60745 
171...................................60745 
172...................................60745 
173 ..........60745, 60763, 60766 
174...................................60745 
177...................................60745 
178...................................60745 
179...................................60745 
180...................................60745 
350...................................60226 
381...................................60226 
383...................................60226 
384...................................60226 
385...................................60226 
386...................................60226 

387...................................60226 
392...................................60226 
Proposed Rules: 
Ch. VI...............................61251 

50 CFR 

17 ...........60608, 60766, 61004, 
61208, 61452, 61506 

229...................................61821 
622 ..........61826, 61827, 61939 
648.......................61828, 61838 
Proposed Rules: 
17 ...........60813, 61046, 61082, 

61273, 61293, 61622, 61764 

VerDate Mar 15 2010 16:54 Oct 08, 2013 Jkt 232001 PO 00000 Frm 00002 Fmt 4712 Sfmt 4712 E:\FR\FM\09OCCU.LOC 09OCCUem
cd

on
al

d 
on

 D
S

K
67

Q
T

V
N

1P
R

O
D

 w
ith

 N
O

T
IC

E
S

4



iii Federal Register / Vol. 78, No. 196 / Wednesday, October 9, 2013 / Reader Aids 

LIST OF PUBLIC LAWS 

Note: No public bills which 
have become law were 
received by the Office of the 
Federal Register for inclusion 

in today’s List of Public 
Laws 

Last List September 23, 2013 
Public Laws Electronic 
Notification Service 
(PENS) 

PENS is a free electronic mail 
notification service of newly 

enacted public laws. To 
subscribe, go to http:// 
listserv.gsa.gov/archives/ 
publaws-l.html 

Note: This service is strictly 
for E-mail notification of new 
laws. The text of laws is not 
available through this service. 
PENS cannot respond to 
specific inquiries sent to this 
address. 
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